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FROM

DATE:

MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Community College of Philadelphia
Monday, March 27, 2017 — 12:00 Noon

Audit Committee of the Board of Trustees

: Todd E. Murphy

March 23, 2017

SUBJECT: Committee Meeting

A meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on Monday, March 27, 2017 at 12:00 Noon
in the College’s Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 (located on the 2™ floor of the
Mint Building). Lunch will be served.
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AGENDA — EXECUTIVE SESSION

AGENDA — PUBLIC SESSION

Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on September 29, 2016 (Action
Item):

Attachment A contains minutes from the September 29, 2016 meeting. The Committee
is asked to review and approve the minutes.

2015-2016 A-133 Audit Report (Action Item):

The A-133 audit draft is provided in Attachment B. The A-133 Audit Report begins on
page 63. Pages 1 to 62 contain the Financial Statements reviewed and accepted by the
Board of Trustees on October 13, 2016. Mr. Brian Page of Grant Thornton will present
the 2015-2016 A-133 audit results.

Internal Audit Update (Information Item):

Mr. Robert Lucas, Internal Auditor, will provide a status report on the 2016-18 internal
audit activities. A handout will be provided and discussed at the meeting.



(4) Next Meeting:

The next meeting of the Committee will be on June 15, 2017 at which time Grant Thornton
will discuss their proposed Audit Plan for the 2016-2017 Fiscal Year end.

TEM/Imh
Attachments

CcC: Dr. Donald Generals, Jr.
Mr. Jacob Eapen
Mr. Robert Lucas
Mr. James P. Spiewak
Victoria Zellers, Esq.
Mr. Gim Lim
Representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Brian Page
Representing the Meridian Group: Mr. Anthony B. Scott



ATTACHMENT A

Minutes from September 29, 2016
Audit Committee Meeting



MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
Community College of Philadelphia
Thursday, September 29, 2016 — 12:00 Noon
Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1

Present: Mr. Anthony J. Simonetta, Mr. Matthew Bergheiser (via telephone), Mr. Jeremiah

White (via telephone), Donald Generals, Ed.D., Mr. Jacob Eapen, Mr. Todd E.
Murphy, Mr. James P. Spiewak, Mr. Robert Lucas, Victoria Zellers Esq. and
representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Brian Page and Ms. Angelica Roiz

Not Present:  Representing the Meridian Group: Mr. Anthony B. Scott

(1)

(2)

AGENDA — PUBLIC SESSION

Approve Minutes of Audit Committee Meeting on June 6, 2016 (Action ltem):

Action: Mr. Simonetta asked for a motion to recommend acceptance of the June
6, 2016 Audit Committee meeting minutes. Mr. Bergheiser made the motion. Mr.
Simonetta seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

2015-16 Fiscal Year Audit Report (Action Item):

Attachment A contains the presentation made by Mr. Brian Page, Engagement
Partner, and Ms. Angelica Roiz, Senior Manager, from Grant Thornton and Attachment B
contains audit results for the 2015-2016 fiscal year. Mr. Page began the discussion by
reviewing the required communications, roles and responsibilities for the financial
statements including the auditors, the Board and Audit Committee. Mr. Page pointed out
that they discussed the specific areas where they were going to spend their time during
the audit at the June 2016 meeting. There were no material changes to their audit
approach presented at that time. Mr. Page also noted that he has reviewed agreements
dealing with the College’s public private partnership (P3) to ensure there are no
accounting issues or impact on the College’s financial statements.

Ms. Roiz then discussed the audit timeline and areas of focus of Grant Thornton'’s
audit. Specifically, she mentioned reasonableness tests regarding tuition, deferrals,
receivables and management’s allowance for doubtful account calculation as compared to
the enrollment population, as well as State and City appropriations and investment
earnings, recorded pension liabilities and the new accounting pronouncement
implementation of GASB 72 Fair Value Measurements and Application. Under this new
accounting standard, the College is required to use appropriate measurement techniques
to measure the fair value of its assets. In addition, the College is required to include
additional disclosures in its financial statements on the leveling of those assets (Level 1,
2 or 3). Ms. Roiz noted that all the necessary disclosures included in this year’'s financial
statements where correct and in accordance with the new pronouncement.



Ms. Roiz then discussed the Information Technology portion of the audit. The
auditors review procedures did not result in any internal control findings. However, the
auditors did identify certain best practices for the College’s consideration.

Ms. Roiz then walked through the summary of audit adjustments. There were no
significant audit adjustments; however, there were two passed audit adjustments that
related to current and non-current vacation accruals and current and non-current security
deposits outlined in the presentation. These adjustments were considered balance sheet
re-classes and are considered immaterial to the College’s financial statements.

She then stated that there had been no disagreements with management in the
preparation of the financial statements, and there had been no difficulties encountered in
performing the audit. The audit team was in fact very pleased with how quickly
management responded to their questions and points of inquiry. It should be noted that
there were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies identified in the 2015-2016
financial statements.

Mr. Brian Page then walked through some key highlights of this year’s financial
statements.  Specifically, he discussed the audit opinion that would be issued as
unmodified, which will be presented to the City of Philadelphia.

Mr. Simonetta asked if the Committee was recommending the audit report to the
Board and issued to the City before the Board accepts it. Mr. Murphy stated that this is
due to the annual City deadline of September 30" but will get presented at the October
13, 2016 Board Meeting.

Some of the other highlights Mr. Page focused on were the changes on the balance
sheet due to the impact of the refinancing of the College’s 2008 Bonds; the increase in
Deferred Inflows/Outflows will be amortized over time into interest expense with the life
period of the Bond; bond proceeds increased to $7.4 million; and, bond premiums
increased to $6.6 million, which was all related to the refinancing. He also discussed the
new note disclosures in Note B of the financial statements as a result of the new GASB 72
Fair Value Measurement & Leveling of Investments implementation.

Several technical updates, projects, regulatory issues and upcoming accounting
pronouncements were pointed out to the Committee, which are outlined in the
presentation. Specifically, the new accounting pronouncements listed in Attachment A
were discussed focusing on GASB 72, 75 & 80. Under GASB 72, the College was required
to include more disclosures with respect to investments. Depending upon the method
used to determine their fair value, investments are now separated into three categories.
Under GASB 75, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, the
College will be required to record the full value of other post-employee benefit liabilities
in their entirety. Currently, the College is phasing this in over a thirty year amortization
period. Consequently, the College will have a large decrease in its net assets going
forward. Under GASB 80, the College will need to re-evaluate the current presentation of
the Component Unit Foundation to determine whether it should be blended into the
College’s financial statements for reporting purposes or continue to be presented
separately.
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Mr. Simonetta commented that the City would be going through the GASB 75
change as well and it may be worthwhile for staff to have some conversations with them
regarding any new supplemental schedules they may require. Mr. Murphy pointed out that
there are certain schedules now that the City requires reformatting, which are added in
the back of the College’s Financial Statements. Mr. Page stated that more than likely the
City will include them in their required reporting package to the College.

Mr. Page then highlighted some industry updates regarding Moody’s outlook on
community colleges. Specifically, he mentioned that there is a stable outlook for the next
18 to 24 months. They expect modest revenue growth of about 3%; however, about 20
to 30% of institutions are expected to struggle with any revenue growth. An increase in
technology investments is expected to outpace the rate of inflation. In addition, good
expense discipline has been observed with improving cash margins. However, they do
expect a cut of 15-20% in cost in order to manage some of the enrollment challenges
institutions are facing. More mergers of smaller schools to achieve economies of scale
are expected. Finally, they believe cash and liquidity reserves will remain fairly stable in
the next 18 to 24 months.

Mr. Simonetta commented that there have been some announcements locally
about institutions like La Salle and Rosemont College cutting their tuition significantly. He
asked Mr. Page if this is the trend Grant Thornton is seeing across the country. Mr. Page
stated that cutting tuition is viewed as an enrollment management strategy. However, he
stated that probably less than 10% of colleges and universities are doing so.

Mr. Page then pointed out that the Moody’s report on community colleges survey
for FY 2015 was the first year in 5 years of reporting that revenue growth outpaced
expense growth industry wide. However, 90% of all community colleges have
experienced enrollment declines since 2011.

Mr. Page concluded his presentation with a brief discussion of how leadership
among institutions is responding to changing conditions, which is outlined in Attachment
A.

Action: Mr. Simonetta made a motion to recommend acceptance of the 2015-2016
Financial Statement Audit to the Board of Directors. Mr. Bergheiser seconded. The motion
passed unanimously.

2015-16 Final Budget Results (Information Item):

Mr. Eapen provided an overview of the College’s budget results for fiscal year
2015-16. The College began the 2015-2016 fiscal year with a balanced budget. The year
ended with operating revenues exceeding operating expenses by $2,160,223.

Student credit hours exceeded budget for the summer and fall 2015 semesters but
spring and summer 2016 semesters were below budget as outlined in Attachment C.
Overall total credit hours were 2% below budget resulting in approximately $2 million less
student tuition and fees than budgeted. State funds were budgeted at an increased
amount of $1.98 million, as originally proposed by Governor Wolf, but as a result of state
budget negotiations were only increased by $1.64 million. More of the City’s appropriation
was able to be allocated to the operating budget because the State began funding 50%
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of the debt service of the 2013 loan that financed improvements to the West Building.
Both investment income and income from miscellaneous sources were above budget.

Total operating expenditures ended the year $4 million less than budgeted.
Positions that were vacant for all or part of the year resulted in spending $1.8 million less
on full-time salaries than originally budgeted. Overall, total salaries were $1,939,000
lower than budgeted. This had the impacted of reducing FICA costs which ended the year
$132,000 lower than budgeted. The fringe benefit budget was positively affected by a
favorable year for the medical self-funded program. Final expenses associated with
healthcare were almost $600,000 below budget. Administration took advantage of the
savings from the salary and fringe benefit lines and other expense lines to pay-off existing
longer-term leases in the amount of $1.57 million. This strategy provides flexibility in the
College’s operating budget for future years. Attachment C provides detail on the revenue
and expenses variances. As presented in the FY 2016-17 budget that was approved by
the Board on June 30, 2016, $915,800 of the excess revenues from FY 2015-16 is required
as a revenue source for FY 2016-17. Due to the lower-than-budgeted enrollments
experienced thus far in FY 2016-17, additional amounts of the FY 2015-16 excess
revenues may be required as a revenue source for FY 2016-17. The remaining excess
revenues may be utilized to establish reserve funds for deferred maintenance and
technology refresh needs.

Mr. Eapen noted that some of the steps that were taken to deal with the challenges

of the 2016-2017 budget were: a freeze on all positions except faculty and reduced
expenses on all budgets across the institution.

Internal Audit Plan 2014-2016 Year Update (Information ltem):

Mr. Lucas provided a final update on the 2014-2016 Internal Audit Plan
(Attachment D). He provided a copy of a summary report of activities since the last Audit
Committee meeting as well as a copy of the audit plan for the two-year period ending
June 2016 to the Committee members. Mr. Lucas stated that, since the last meeting, he
had issued one finalized audit report to management and completed three audits with
draft audit reports issued to management, including one requested by management after
the last Audit Committee meeting. One 2016 internal audit is in progress and the draft
audit report is expected to be issued by October 7, 2016.

Mr. Lucas also provided a copy of the 2016-2018 Internal Audit Plan approved by
management to the Audit Committee members. He noted that the plan is the same one
provided as the proposed plan at the last Audit Committee meeting with the addition of
one audit, Royalty Payments from Publishers, requested by management for which the
draft report has already been issued to management. Work has begun on several other
audits as indicated on the audit plan.

The audit of the Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) was scheduled to begin in October.
Management has requested this audit be deferred until December due to ITS’ work on
this subject and several other high priority projects. Mr. Lucas stated that the audit plan
is designed to be flexible for such requests and that he will work on other audits and circle
back to the DRP audit toward the end of the year.



Mr. Lucas also noted that he continues to work with management to obtain the
statuses of previously issued audit comments. He provided an updated version of the
Internal Audit Follow-Up Matrix to the Committee which includes all audit report
recommendations for which management’s action plan are not yet complete. Mr. Lucas
noted that a number of the action plans are long term as they include construction, new
software or new equipment, each of which have significant time and expense
considerations. The budget constraints in 2016-2017 may further extend the timeline of
some action plans.

(5) February 2017 Meeting Date (Information Item):
The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be scheduled in February 2017. At
that time, the Committee will discuss the 2015-2016 A-133 audit report.
EXECUTIVE SESSION
During any Audit Committee meeting; Management, The Independent Auditors or
the Internal Auditor may request an Executive Session to meet privately with the Audit
Committee. The Committee met with both the Internal and Independent Auditors in
Executive Session.
TEM/lh
Attachments
cc: Dr. Donald Generals, Jr.

Mr. Jacob Eapen

Mr. Robert Lucas

Mr. James P. Spiewak

Victoria Zellers, Esq.

Representing Grant Thornton: Mr. Brian Page
Representing the Meridian Group: Mr. Anthony B. Scott
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Grant Thornton
2015-2016 A-133 Audit Draft
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An audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the.
in the financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the audito
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemegitsy whether due to fraud or
etror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal cotitrol relevant to the College’s
ptepatation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedutes that
are apptopriate in the citcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁclent and appropnate to provide a basis
for out audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements refetred to above present fairly, in all matetial respects, the
tespective financial position of the business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of
the Community College of Philadelphia as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, dated September 30,
2016, on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agteements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That repott is an
part of an audit petformed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
‘ifternal control over financial reporting and compliance.




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2016 and 2015

INTRODUCTION

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is based upon facts, decisions, and conditions known as of the

date of the audit rgfidet. The results for 2016 are compared to those for the 2015 fiscal year. The MD&A should be read

in conjunction %glanclal statements and accompanying notes which follow this section.

Communigf: ?* delphia (the College) has prepared its financial statements in accordance with Government

Accougfi ) (GASB) principles, which establish standards for external financial reporting for public

college: itiegfand require the financial statements be presented to focus on the College as a whole. The
mmunity College of Philadelphia Foundation (the Foundation) are reported as a component

% Wed in the development of a new strategic plan. The strategic plan is
i “Workforce development and economic innovation; fiscal stability and
fies; and external and internal community relations

focused on: student succ

sustainability; world-class fa

e The College has begun the

. with a highly structuted expéti

intake process that clarifies students’ goal

students with developmental educati
and md1v1dually—designed support,

tion and communication initiatives
that are essential to keeping students invested iffjtheir education agd to degree completion.

e A new Academic Advising Department has been established. (Gt are seven (7) full-time advisors
that will Work within the gmded pathways model, mcorpor ) emi i

e The College completed a collaborative reorganization mtended to make the College a 1
success and completion. This student-focused reotganization is designed to build capa
College’s strategic goals and continuing its longstanding commitment to affordable educa

. As part of the reorganization, a Vice President for Workforce and Economic Innovati
division. Working with othet areas of the College, this division will significantly e
of the College’s workfotce development and continuing education programs.

e A comprehensive Facilities Master Plan is in the final stages of developme
Wallace, Roberts & Todd (WRT). ' '

e The College is embarking on a public private partnetship with Radnor Property Group for a mixed-use facility
at 15% and Hamilton Streets and has recently signed a letter of intent. It will include student housing, market
rate housing and retail space. The College would receive annual ground lease payments from the developer.
The ground lease and operating agreements are being negotiated.

o Credit enrollments for the Fall 2015 semester exceeded those of the ptior year. However, the College
experienced a 5% reduction in credit houts for the Spring 2016 semester. Overall, final credit hours were only
2% less than the prior year, which is better than state-wide and national trends.

e The planning has been completed for the renovations to the Colleége’s biology labs on the main campus, with
construction to begin in October 2016. The biology prep toom renovation in the Northeast Regional Center

d by the consulting firm of



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

was completed. Beginning in the 2015-16 fiscal yeat, the College began receiving State payments for 50% of
the debt setvice for these projects. -

Nonoperating reven ¢
S
Overview of Financial Statements

The College’s financial statements fagiis on the College as a whole, rather than upon individual funds ot activities. The
GASB repotting model is designed to*provide readers wi overview of the College’s finances and is comprised
of three basic statements:

the College’s assets and liébiliu'es, with the difference

o The Statements of Net Position present nformatl
creases ot decreases in net assets serve as one indicator of

between the two reported as net assets. Over t1m
how the financial position of the College is cha.

o The Statements of Revenues, Excpenses and Changes in Net Position
assets changed during the most recent fiscal yeat. All change
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of thig go
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows i

ture fiscal periods.

o The Statements of Cash Flows ate repotted on the direct method. The direct method o flow reporting

portrays net cash flows from operations, financing, and investing receipts and disbutse

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to derstanding of the data
provided in the financial statements. The notes contain details on both the accountinggiglicies and procedures that the
College has adopted, as well as additional information for certain amounts repotted in the financial statements.

Net Position

The College’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less
accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt incutted to acquite those assets. The College uses these capital assets to
provide setvices to students, faculty, and administration; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the College’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other soutces, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

At June 30, 2016, the College’s net position was $61.1 million, with assets of $225.0 million exceeding liabilities of $171.8
million. As a result of financial circumstances which conttibuted to asset growth, net position increased by $6.8 million
in the 2016 fiscal year ptiot to tecording the impact of the post-employment benefit liability. The change in net assets

egative $42.6 million. Absent the cumulative impact of the post-employment benefit liability
o requirements, untestticted net position would cutrently be at a level of $27.8 million. The




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015
Summaty of Net Position
June 30,
2016 2015 2014
(In millions)

Assets™ .
Current assets $ 34.2 $ 31.5 $ 32.7
Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets net of 166.5 171.3 179.5
Bond proceeds availah! 7.5 - 0.2
Other ’ 16.8 16.2 16.1

Total assets 225.0 $ 219.0 $ 2285

Deferred outflows of resources 8.0 $ 0.5 $ -

Liabilities:

" Current liabilities 29.6
Noncurrent liabilities 126.4
Total liabilities 156.0

Deferred inflows of resources -

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 93.8

. Unrestricted (26.0)
Restricted: A

Expendable 4.9 4.7 4.7
Total net position $ 611 $ 659 $ 72.5




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Assets

Current assets mcre sed by $2.7 million in fiscal year 2016. Net accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents, and

d. by $3.3 million. Bond proceeds available for campus construction increased as the College
s on the Main Campus in the West Building. These completed projects included creating
an engineering technology lab, creation of a research lab, and renovations of four chemistry
& The College’s capital assets as of June 30, 2016 net of accumulated depreciation were $166.5
8 million over the amount reported for 2015 of $171.3 million. The decrease in the net value

Total current liabilities decggz.‘?e by $
by $1.0 million primarily due to a de
incentive. The College self-insures its

 the yeat-end accrual for employees electing the College’s retitement
ployee medical plan. A reinsurance limit of $250,000 was in place for the 2016

The College’s outstanding long-term debt was at $73.9 n as of June 2016, an increase of $2.7 million from June
2015 reflecting principal payments made during the fiscaliye atirement of the College’s 2010 Bonds,
refinance of the 2008 Bonds, and issuance of the 201 of future post-retitement benefits
other than pensions, projected to be paid to retired emp
30, 2016. The July 1, 2015 repott included certain changes in actuatia
by $11.6 million in fiscal year 2016. The College has elected to p
liability over a 30-yeat period and to continue to fund the costs of the post-retirefiient benefit out of the College’s annual
budgeted revenues. A separate trust has not been established to fund any portion of this liabilitjgfLhe post—employment
benefits liability amount for fiscal year 2016 also includes $3.4 million related to GASB 68 whic uires the College
to record its relative proportion of the net funded status of certain state cost sharing pension p
estimated value for the acctued post-employment benefit liability in fiscal years 2016, 2015, ang
$58.2 million, and $47.3 million, respectively. Absent this reporting requirement, the Colle,
2016 would have been at a level of $131.5 million. .
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Capital lease obligations include mainly technology associated with academic and administrative computing. The College
paid off the remaining obligations of leases for a digital press, copier equipment and computer equipment.

June 30,

2016 2015 ' 2014
(In millions)

Operaﬁng revenues:

Net tuition and fees
Auxiliary enterprises and othet

31.6 $ 32.0 $ 35.3
1.9 © 2.0 1.8

Total 371
Operating expenses 166.1
Operating loss (129.0)
Net nonoperating revenues 110.5
Change in net assets before other revenues (17.2) (18.5)
Net capital revenue and changes to endowments ’ 12.3 14.0
Total change in net position $ 49 $ (4.5)

11



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT"’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Operating Revenues

The largest soutces of operating revenue for the College are student tuition and fees and auxiliary enterptise revenues.
In 2016, the tuiti ge per credit was $153; the same as the previous year. The Technology Fee was also unchanged
he eral College Fee, which supports student life programs and athletics, remained unchanged at
charges coutse fees which range from $75 to $300 in selected high-cost courses. Average
total tuifign’and fee revengie per credit for 2016 was $204. Auxiliary enterprise revenues ate generated from bookstore,

offset by the ship allowance
$43,395,057. The scholatship all nts tuition and fee payments made using public and private grants and

owance amounts between fiscal 2016 and fiscal 2015 are reflective of
fiscal year.

Gift revenue in the amount of $225,000 was received in 2016 and is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Assets. This e reflects payments from the Foundation’s Capital Campaign, as well as a
contribution received from the Foutidation that was
Single Stop USA. Single Stop USA is a nonprofit
students to state and federal financial resoug

economic barriers, continue with their education and

t delivers services to families nationwide by connecting
¥munity services. The aim is to help students overcome
ard economic mobility.

Nonopetrating Revenues

328, an increase of $1,496,739
d $28,179,310,

ived in fiscal year 2015.
n fiscal year 2015,
year 2014. Net

Total 2016 City funding was $30,309,207, a $34.0 million increase 12.6%) over the amount re
Of the funding appropriation, $23,271,627 was used for operating budget purposes in 2
$21,277,040 of the total appropriation was used for opetating purposes and $18,346,138 in
investment income was $815,452 in fiscal year 2016, $364,680 in 2015, and $695,167 in 2014. Inc
income for 2016 is an unrealized gain of $368,205 and a realized gain of $2,129 for all investsy i
2016.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Capital Appropriations

The State provided capital funding for debt service and capital purchases in the amounts of $5, 316 618 and $5,017,352
for fiscal yeats 20§ G ind 2015 respectively. The amount received in fiscal year 2014 was $6,109,663. The College used

e approptiation of $30,309,207 in fiscal year 2016 for debt service and capital purchases. In
, City appropriations used for debt setvice and capital purchases were $5,836,028 and

ﬁscal year§ 015 and 2044
$7,859,2085 espectively. it

Expenses by Function

June 30,

2016 2015 2014

Instruction $ 66,017,583 $ 65,046,544 $ 66,209,598
Public service 183,375 64,882 108,954
Research - 20,921 -

Academic support 18,823,708 18,372,027 17,492,238
Student services 25,1420 23,493,959 22,810,350

Institutional suppott 70,565 25,229,115

Physical plant operations 13,335,791 12,585,835

Depreciation 8,860,741 9,697,79 10,490,412
Student aid 8,739,358 8,210,97¢ 0,459,176

Auxiliary enterprises 567,452 770,012

Total operating expenses - $ 167,676,896 $ 163,444,669 $ 166,155,690

Exclusive of Student aid and Depreciation expenses, the College’s operating expenses totaled $150,076,797 in fiscal
2016, $145,535,895 in fiscal 2015, $145,206,102 in fiscal 2014. September 1, 2014 began year four of a five-year labor
contract that was ratified by the union in September 2013.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

In fiscal 2008, the College implemented the GASB 45 accounting standard. This standard requires that the present value
of future post-retitement benefits other than pensions, projected to be paid to retited employees, be recorded as an

expense in pubic institutions’ financial statements. The value of the expense for fiscal yeats 2016, 2015 and 2014 was

and $8,641,201, respectively.

Expenses by Natural Classifications

June 30,
2016 2015 2014
(In thousands)
Expenses:

Salaries $ 77,931 $ 77,161 75,438
Benefits 36,978 35,767 35,885
Contracted setvices 6,458 8,330 9,697
Supplies 3,857 3,073 3,232
Depreciation 8,861 9,698 10,490
Student aid 8,739 8,211 10,459
Other 13,167 12,815 12,314

GASB 45 & 68 (Other post-employment
benefits) accrual 8,390 - 8,041
Total operating expenses 63,445 . 166,156
Interest on capital asset-related debt service 3,315 4,225 4,258

Total nonoperating expenses 3,315

Total expenses A $ 170,992 $

In fiscal year 2016, expenses associated with the College’s operating budget increaséd’by $413,000 or 0.3%. Total
opetating expenditures ended the year $4.0 million less than budgeted. A number of vacant positions during the year
resulted in a much highet-than-budgeted lapse salary savings. Overall, salaries were $1.9 million lower than budgeted.
The fringe benefit budget was positively affected by a favorable year for the medical self-funded program. Final medical
program costs were almost $600,000 below budget. Administration took advantage of the savings from the salaty and
fringe benefit lines and other expense lines to pay off existing longer-term leases in the amount of $1.6 million. This
strategy provides flexibility in the College’s operating budget for future years. Expenses associated with restricted grants
decreased by $2.5 million, or 1.3%, from the fiscal year 2015. expenses. This decrease was related to the TAACCCT
grant which, in fiscal year 2016, had $3.4 million less expenses than in fiscal year 2015.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

Schedule of Fund Balances

shows fund balances in the four fund groups: Unrestricted, Restricted, Endowment and Plant. The
ymounts reported for unrestricted operations funds were reduced by the impact of GASB 45 and
#ied expense liability for post-employment benefits. The impact of GASB 45 reporting in 2016
Sas $8,016,318, and in 2014 was $8,641,201. The negative unrestricted plant fund balance
t of unfunded depreciation expense.

The following cha
2016, 2015 and 20

June 30,

2016 2015 2014

$ (34795760) § (26926568 $ (16,669,094)

Total unrestricted fund

Endowment fund:

Quasi endowment (unrestricted 1,555,625 1,606,385 1,762,678

Total endowment

55,625 1,606,385 1,762,678

Plant fund:
Net invested in capital assets 98,775,826 96,978,995 93,771,459
Restricted expendable - capital 4,912,257 4,742,166 4,742,069
Untrestricted (9,391,008)4 @0,482,019) (11,069,072)
Total plant fund 91,239,142 " 87,444,456
Total net position $ 61,056,940 $ 65,918,959 72,538,040

Community College of Philadelphia Foundation

miillion, $12.1 million, and
oundation was $1.7 million,
upon donor intent.

The Foundation was established in 1985. Total assets for 2016, 2015 and 2014 were §
$11.8 million, respectively. Total unrestricted net position for 2016, 2015 and 2014 for ¢
$1.7 million, and $1.6 million, respectively. The remaining net position is restricted based

Future Impacts

For fiscal year 2017, City funding to the College was increased by $1.0 million, but the $1.4 million allocation for capital
received for fiscal year 2015-16 was not repeated. The additional $1.0 million appropriation is somewhat restricted in
that $800,000 must be used for the establishment of small business training and development efforts. The State budget
included an increase of $768,000. Student tuition remains at $153 per credit hour, and the technology fee was increased
by $2 per credit hout, from $28 to $30. Additionally, course fees wete increased by 15%; this increase ranged from $10
to $45 for those high-cost courses with fees. Credit entollments for the fall 2016 semester are trending 5% below

enrollments of fall 2015.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

June 30,

Business-type activities

Component unit

The Community College The Community College
N of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation
S :
ASSETSQ ;;fg : 2016 2015 2016 2015

$ 12,824,547 $ 10,323,803 609,930 $ 191,827
13,684,393 12,396,932 1,312,723 1,164,745
4,931,453 4,830,003 . 910,861 1,246,209

1,408,062 2,848,056 - -

Acctued interest receivable 35,810 47,160 - -

Other assets 1,355,173 1,066,648 - -
Total current assets 34,239,43-8 31,512,602 2,833,514 2,602,781

Noncurrent assets:

Endowment investments (Note B) - 8,976,588 8,953,083
Accounts receivable, net (Note C) - 362,632 609,173

Bond proceeds available for campus construction 5,060 - -

Other long-term investments (Note B) 16,222,800 - -

Capital assets, net (Note D) 171,293,451 - -
Total noncutrent assets 9,339,220 9,562,256

o

Total assets $ 225,007,144 12172734 $ 12,165,037

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred outflows ) § 8,020,057

$

543,675

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED

June 30,

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Business-type activities Component unit
The Community College The Community College
% of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation
LIABI%@S’ INET POSITION 2016 2015 2016 2015
Cutrrent ggg%iées .
Ac(:(f;E i payable and accggedl liabilities (Note E) $ 15,412294 $ 16,517,824 $ 488,559 $ 398,169
Payabl 61,159 490,637 - -
Deposits 545,527 561,301 - -
Uneatned revenue 2,057,075 2,360,265 939,549 852,272
Current portion of capital lease obli 358,836 1,128,414 - -
Curtent portion of long-term de 6,910,051 6,170,886 - -
Unamortized bond prermum 573,109 51,170 - -
Total curtent liabilities 25,918,051 27,280,497 1,428,108 1,250,441
i
. Noncurtent liabilities: S
Acctued liabilities (Note E) 1,084,173 - A
- - Annuity payable - 4,804 4,153 -
Capital lease obligation (Note F) 1,580,569 - -
Long-tetm debt (Note F) 65,021,752 - ’
Unamortized bond premium - -
Othet post-employment benefits liability (Note H) - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 145,868,338 4,804 4,153
Total liabilities $ 171,786,389 1,432,912 $ 1,254,594
Deferred inflows of tesources:
Defertred inflows $ 183,872 $ 97,351
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 98,775,826 96,978,995
Restricted:
Nonexpendable:
Scholarships, awards and faculty chair - - 6,933,527 6,934,838
Annuities - - 1,206 2,571
Expendable:
Scholarships, awards and faculty chair - - 1,611,597 1,653,576
Capital projects 4,912,257 4,742,166 468,856 580,500
Unrestricted (42,631,143) (35,802,202) 1,724,636 1,738,958
Total net position $§ 61,056,940 $ 65,918,959 $ 10,739,822 $ 10910443
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Community 'College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years ended June 30,
Business-type activities Component unit
The Community College The Community College
of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation

2016 2015 2016 2015
$ 59,627,838 $ 61,189,199 $ - $ -
17,199,901 17,317,261 - -
(45,185,037) (46,533,705) - -

31,642,702 31,972,755 - -

Net student tuition and fees
Auzxiliary eﬁterprises 1,740,088 1,785,603 - -
Gifts - - 553,833 770,634
Other sources 87,288 196,423 135,207 118,048
Total operating revenues 33,954,781 689,040 888,682
Operating expenses (Note J):
Educational and general:
Instruction 52,044 40,426
Public service - -
Academic support ‘ - -
Student services 25,14 2,964 ° 37,050
Institutional support 24,429,407 , 1,647,419 1,703,304
Physical plant operations 14,913,188 - -
Depreciation 8,860,741 : - -
Student aid ’ 8,739,358 8,210,976
Auxiliary enterprises 567,452 831,206
Total operating expenses 167,676,896 163,444,669
Operating loss $ (134,206,818)  § (129,489,888) $ (1,201,042

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,
Business-type activities Component unit
" The Community College The Community College
of Philadelphia of Philadelphia Foundation
2016 2015 ' 2016 2015
$ 30,128,328 $ 28,631,589 $ - $ -
23,271,627 21,271,006 - -
53,551,135 57,870,842 - -
Philadelphia Foundation 225,000 140,848 (225,000) (140,848)
State grants and contracts 8,278,313 - 7,343,322 - -
Nongovernmental grants and 1,456,249 1,521,465 1,541,177 1,624,928
Net investment income 815,452 364,680 22,493 270,135
Interest on capital asset-related debt se (3,314,912) . (4,224,570) - -
Other nonoperating revenues ~ 2,579,409 L 1,087,072 - -

114,006,254 1,338,670 1,754,215

Net nonoperating revenues
(Loss) gain before other revenues, expenses, .
gains or losses '(15,483,634) (170,621) 553,173

Capital approptiations

(Dectease) increase in net position (4,862,019) (170,621) 553,173

Net position, beginning of the year 65,918,959 10,910,443 10,357,270

Net position, ending of the year $ 61,056,940 $ 65,918,959 $ »  § 10,910,443

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

(Business-Type Activities - College only)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30,

2016

2015

Cash flows from opergting activities:

$§ 32,978,676

$ 31,283,356

(24,955,335) (23,707,061)

(77,393,012) (76,943,418)

(37,613,988) (35,067,726)

(8,739,358) (8,210,976)
1,726,271 1,778,519
87,288 196,423

(113,909,458) (110,670,883)

State appropriations 30,096,838 28,641,818
City approptiations 23,271,627 21,277,040
Gifts and grants 63,112,709 64,331,404
Other nonoperating 2,563,635 1,187,580
Net cash provided by noncépital financing activities 119,044,809 115,437,842

Cash flows from capital and related financing activiti
State capital appropriations 5,316,618 5,017,352
City capital approptiations 7,037,580 5,836,028
Proceeds from long-term debt 52,075,000 -

(Increase) decrease in bond proceeds available for campus constr (7,475,086) 202,673

Putchases of capital assets 3,164,837) (1,217,392)

Principal payments on long-term debt and amottization of capital leases (52,043,564) (11,839,447)

Interest payments on long-term debt and capital leases 3,397,500 (4,308,863)

¢ Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

(6,309,649)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

753,179,375

Putrchases of investments (52,279,927)
Interest on in.vestrnents 365,582
Net cash (useld in) provided by investing activities (982,818) 1,265,030

Increase (dectease) in cash 2,500,744/( (277,660)
10,323,803 10,601,463

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 12824547

$ 10,323,803

(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

20



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

(Business-Type Activities - College only)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

Years ended June 30,

Accounts payable and accrued
Deferred revenues - :
Other post-employm

enfilse
L

Supplemental disclosute of noncash capits
Capital assets acquired via capital lease

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2016

s

2015

$ (134,206,818)

$ (129,489,888)

8,860,741 9,697,798
1,353,883 (589,271)
(288,525) 493,218
(15,339) (27,550)
(1,008,866) 1,102,852
(290,654) (247,860)
11,686,120 8,389,818

$ (113,909,458)

$ (110,670,883)

$

945,054

$ 280,909




Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. Orggmzauo&%j%ﬁb

se of Philadelphia (the College) operates in accordance with the provisions of Commonwealth
ctnmonwealth) legislation and through the sponsorship of the City of Philadelphia (the City).
poses, the College has been determined to be a component unit of the Clty, and as such

The Community College of |
responsible for College

The by-laws of the Foundation e “tie College’s board of trustees the authority to amend the Articles of
Incotpotation of the Foundation y time. The Foundation is considered to be a discretely presented component
unit of the College, and all financjgl transactions are reported within the financial statements of the College.

using the economic resources measurement focus and
ting principles genera]ly accepted in the United States of
Avhen earned and expenses are recorded

the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with ac
America (U.S. GAAP), as prescribed by the GASB. Ry

revenue as soon as all eligibility requitements have been met.

The College has determined that it functions as a Business T
interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial statcthents.

The College’s policy is to define operating activities in the statement of tevenues, expenseSgand changes in net
position as those that generally result from exchange transactions such as the payment rec
payment made for the purchase of goods and services. Certain other transactions ate
activities. These nonoperating activities include the College’s operating and capi
Commonwealth and the City; federal, state, and private grants; net investment incopig:
disposals of capital assets.

3. Government Appropriations

Revenue from the Commonwealth and the City is recognized in the fiscal year ‘during which the funds are
appropriated to the College. The College is fiscally dependent upon these appropriations. Specxﬁc accounting policies
with regard to government approptiations are as follows:

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Commonmwealth of gmgylmﬂm

5

.establishing community colleges provides for the reimbursement of cettain college expenses
ds appropriated for this putpose. Act 46 enacted in July 2005 changed the original basis of
to Commonwealth community colleges from a formula approach based upon full-time
ts taught in the cutrent fiscal yeat to a state-wide community college approptiation. Undet
operating budget approptiation fot community colleges is to be distributed among each of the
‘thiee parts: base fundifigerowth funding and high ptiotity (economic development) program funding,

The provisions of Act 46 are i ] sure that base operating funding for each college will at least equal the
amount of funds received i Annually, 25% of any new dollats in the operating funding granted
' portionally among the colleges experiencing growth in the pnor yeat

The other significant opetating]
Development (high priotity) prog :
in program areas defined by the State to contri
ptiot-year FTE enrollments in targeted 4
propottionate shate of the available funds 4l ocated

ding change as a result of Act 46 was the establishment of Economic
i ogtam funding is based upon prior year enrollments
wotker growth in ctitical employment areas. Using

For the 2016 and 2015 fiscal yeats, the provisions o
Pennsylvania community colleges.

and grounds debt setvice on major capital projects, and net ret ; ehg1b1e capital
the tate of 50%. Capital costs not previously approved for annual funding ate subject to 4%
ptocess, with the allocation of available funds made by the Pennsylvania Department of Educ:
ctitetia.

peu'tive application
using state-wide

Any excesses or deficiencies between provisional payments and the final annual reimb nt calculation of annual

Commonwealth funding ate reflected as a payable ot receivable from the Commo:
4. Net Position
The College classifies its net position into the following four net position categoties:

Net investment in capital assets: Capltal assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of
debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, tepait, ot improvement of those assets.

Restricted - nonexpendable: Net position subject to extetnally imposed conditions that the College must maintain
them in perpetuity.
(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

s and demand deposits with financial banking institutions to be cash.

The College considers gli’p
‘ nents (primarily certificates of deposit) with a maturity of 90 days or less

The College considers a
to be cash equivalents.

6. Investments

Valuations for non-marketable securities are provided

Investments in marketable securities are s
set value as provided by investment managets.

by external investment managers and are upot
Dividends, interest and net gains or losses on inve; ts of endowmengs and similar funds ate reported in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in nefposition. Any nefd not expended are included in net
_ position categories as follows: ¢

() asincreases in restricted - nonexpendable net positio f the gift requite that they be added to
the principal of a permanent endowment fund;
(i) as increases in restricted - expendable net position if the terms of the gift or the
televant state law impose restrictions on the cutrent use of the income or net gains; 2

(iii) as increases in unrestricted net position in all other cases.

e’s interpretation of

The College policy petmits investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasuty; certificates posit; commercial paper
tated A-1 by Standard and Poot’s Cotpotation ot P-1 by Moody’s Commetcial Pape ord; bankers’ acceptances;
repurchase agreements; and the Commonfund’s Intermediate Term Fund and ti-Strategy Bond Fund, and
specifically approved fixed income secutities. The investment practice of the Foundation includes the use of PEM
Asset Management as its outsourced chief investment officer. The Foundation also uses Bryn Mawr Trust as its

custodian of endowment funds.

7. Capital Assets

Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost. Furnishings and equipment are stated at cost
at date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at fair value at date of donation. Interest costs on debt related to capital
assets are capitalized during the construction period. There were no capitalized interest costs for the yeats ended
June 30, 2016 or 2015.

(Continued) -
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Years
10 to 50
3 to 10
Library books 10
Audiovisual 5
Computer 3
Compy 10
The costs of notmal maintenance 4iid repairs that do not increase the value of the asset or materially extend assets’

lives ate not capitalized.

-~

8. Compensated Absences

s for vacation leave and sick leave. Accrued vacation is
7 statement of net position date. Upon retirement, these
ed in the College policy and collective

batgaining agreements.

9. Students’ Deposits and Unearned Revenue

Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees rel% A
for the following academic yeat are deferred and are recorded as tevenues When instructio

10. Student Fees

ehded Jund 30, 2016 and
and activities.

Included in student fees are general college fees of $1,475,442 and $1,515,884 for the yeass
2015, respectively, which have been designated for use by the vatious student organizg :

11. Tax Status
The College generally is exempt from federal and state taxes due to its status as an unincotporated association
established by the Pennsylvania Community College Act of 1963 (the Act). Under the Act, community colleges are

considered to be activities of the Commonwealth.

The Foundation is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

The Internal R
509(a)(1) ang
fund-raisjfieia

ue Service (IRS) determined the Foundation is also classified as a public charity under Sections
1)(A)(vi) of the Internal Revenue Code to setve as an organization responsible for College

Thep i ancial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptionsitha @mounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statgfiigtSind the reported amounts of revenues and expenses duting the reporting

e estimates.

cettain other revenues from students, ate reported net of scholarship discounts
tevenues, expenses and changes in net position. Scholasship discounts and
oods and services provided by the College and the
payments on students’ behalf. Certain governmental
ues in the College’s financial statements. To the extent

Student tuition and fee revenues,
and allowances in the statemen
allowances are the difference betyeen the stated charged
amount that is paid by students and/or third parti
grants are recorded as either operating ot nong
that revenues from such programs are u saty
recotded a scholatship discount and allowance.

14. Self-Insurance

The Community College of Philadelphia Board of Trustees apprg
medical plan through Independence Blue Cross, which becameffectivéigeptember 1, 2009. A reinsurance limit of
$225,000 is in place to limit institutional financial exposute fot 11 ] inari
yeat. The College has established a self-insurance accrued liability account for incurred clai
of claims incurred but not reported. The College’s self-insurance liability at June 30, 2016 an 5 was $1,532,869
and $1,233,369, respectively, based upon an actuarial calculation based upon historical claim

15. Deferred Qutflows/ InﬂQ\‘vs ‘of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statements of Net Position include a sepatate section forideferred outflows of resoutces.
This sepatate financial statement element reptesents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods
and will not be recognized as an outflow of resoutces until that time. In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net
Position include a separate section for defetred inflows of resources. This sepatate financial statement element
represents an acquisition of a net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources until that time. The College’s deferred outflow/inflow relates to amounts recorded in connection with
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68), as well as the advance refunding of
the 2008 Series Community College Revenue Bonds in September 2015. '

. (Continued)

-26



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

16. Pensions &

diidluciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
tiih s putpose, benefit payments (mduMg refunds of employee contribuuons) are recognized

addresses accounting and financi
applying fair value to certain inve
of this statement become effectiy
GASB 72, the College has dete ied and disclosed all fai e measutements

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No
Pensions (GASB 75). The primary ob)ecﬁv
postemployment benefits other than pensions. This s

This statement also identifies the methods and assurn tions that are
discount projected benefit payment to their actuarial present valyg iat present value to periods of

ncial statements for periods beginning

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Pri woiplag for State and Local
Governments (GASB 76). The ptimary objective of this statement is to identify, in the
governmental financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted acco
The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the soutces of accounting principles used to prepare £
and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework for g those principles. GASB
76 reduces the GAAP hierarchy from four to two categoties of authoritative P and addresses the use of
authotitative and non-authoritative literature in the event that the accounting for a transaction or other event is not
specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. This statement replaces the requirements of Statement 55, The
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments. The requirements of this statement are
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The adoption of this statement did not
result in any significant changes to the College’s financial statements.

cial statements of state

(Continued)
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

primary ob s statement is to improve financial reporting by clarifying the financial statement presentation
requir component units. This statement amends the blending requirements established in
zgé ient No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended. The additional criterion requires

‘ unit incotporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the
iet. ‘The add1t10na1 ctiterion does not apply to _component umts mduded in the financial

are effective for ﬁnanmal statements for periods beginning after June 15,
wprocess of evaluating the impact of adopting this statement.

The College invests its funds in agfordafice with the Board of Trustees’ investment policy, which authorizes the
College to invest in cash equivalenfSiwhich consist of treasury bills, money market funds, commercial paper, bankers’
and certificates of ‘deposit; fixed income securities including U.S. government

and agency securmes cotporate
bonds; and mutual funds mcludlng the Comm
Fund. Regardless of fund classlﬁcatlons
maintain significant hqu1d1ty and max
objectives include mamtannng sufficient hqmdtty to
The College recogmzes that it may be necessaty togfprego opportunitiefufor potennal large gains to achieve a

/Strategy Bond Fund and Commonfund Intermediate
nets apply. Investments in all classifications seek to
ot the College while avoiding excessive risk. Speclﬁc

estate, short selhng, margin transactions and certain denvauv
portfolio tisk, is required. At least annually, the Board of Trus
to determine any appropriate revisions.

Operating funds may be invested only in cotporate bonds rated at 2 minimum A- by Standat Poor’s or A3 by

Moody’s Investors Setvice, Inc. (Moody’s) that are of U.S. dollar denomination. Investmeng$iitigsset-backed and

mortgage-backed bonds are limited to those rated AAA/Aaa. Investments in commercial paf srated A1/P1

Deposits are comprised of demand deposit accounts with financial institutions. At both June 30, 2016 and 2015,
cash on hand was $4,000. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the carrying amount of deposits was $12,820,547 and
$10,319,803, and the bank balance was $14,392,582 and $10,964,508, respectively. The differences were caused
primarily by items in transit. Deposits of $750,000 were covered by federal depository insurance of $250,000 for
each of four bank accounts at both June 30, 2016 and 2015.

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

2

Intermediate fixed income 1
Equity mutual fund
Multi-strategy bond mutuz
Money market mutual funds
Private real estate

Total deposits and investments

The following is the fait value of deposits and inves

Deposits:
Demand deposits

Investments:
Insured money market deposit
U.S. Treasuty obligations
U.S. government agency obligations
Corporate and foreign bonds
Intermediate fixed income mutual fund
Equity mutual fund
Multi-strategy bond mutual fund
Money matket mutual funds
Private real estate

Total deposits and investments

the fait value of deposits and investments at June 30, 2016:

College Foundation
$ 12,820,547 $ 609,930
1,054 -
4,305,938 387,939
2,183,361 -
4,451,055 -
5,501,105 2,905,649
- 5,417,737
5,274,992 -
8,715,847 1,312,723
- 265,263
$ 43,253,899 $ 10,899,241
Hents at June 30,4
Foundation

$ 10,319,803

206,256 .
4,728,18

3,870,205
5,487,189
5,218,200
7,367,335

600,496

2,266,546
5,815,402
1,164,745

270,639

$ 38,939,535

$ 10,309,655

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

In addition to the deposits and investments listed above, the College also has bond proceeds available for campus
i Sovereign Bank, the State Public School Building Authority, and the Bank of New Yotk (the
s of various bond indentures. Bond proceeds available for campus construction are carried
ts at fair value and consist of short-term investments and government securities. As of

Jung bond proceeds available for campus construction include the following
2016 2015
$ 7,480,146 $ 5,060

Construction funds

The College’s investments’

at 1 the event of a bank failure, the College’s deposits may not be returned to the
2 deposit policy for custodlal credit risk. Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72
of 1971, as amended, allows banking institutions to e collaterahzatton rcqmrement by poohng eligible
investments to covet total publi¢ funds on deposi
with the financial institutions’ trust departpéfi

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the College’s bank balanc exposed to custodial credit isk as follows:

2015

Uninsured and collateral held by pledging bank’s trust

department not in the College’s name 820,547 - $§ 10,319,803

tificates of deposit
pce Corporauon

The College participates in the Cettificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) for 15§
and Insured Cash Sweep (ICS). CDARS and ICS allow the College to access Federal Deposit I "
(FDIC) insurance on multi-million dollar certificates of deposit and money “market dep A
that compate favorably to treasuries and money market mutual funds. Custodial credit
the College’s certificates of deposit as a result of its participation in the CDARS prog

Credit risk is the tisk that an issuet or other counterparty to an investment will not tulfill its obligations. The credit
tisk of a debt instrument is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies such as Moody’s.

(Continued)
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

The mulu—str {oy. bond fund and the intetmediate fixed income fund are mutual funds managed by the
/T H@etedit quality of the investments that comprise these funds are:

June 30, 2016

Multi-Strategy

Bond Intermediate
Governmeng ¥ “18% 25%
Agency 24 22
AAAg ” 9 22
AA 5 6
A 14 14
BBB 17 10
Below BBB

Non-rated/Other

Total

Government
Agency
AAA

AA

A

BBB

Below BBB
Non-rated/Other _ 5 -

Total 100% 100%

(Continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

fixed income investments in which the College directly invests, including U.S. Treasury
ent agency obligations and corporate bonds, is as follows:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Fixed Fixed
income income
secutities ' securities
59% . 64%
11 9
13 14
17 13
100% 100%

will adversely affect the fair value of fixed income
specifically address limitations in the maturities of
ge’s fixed income,investments at June 30, 2016 and 2015

Interest rate risk is the risk that chang ;
investments. The College’s investment policy do
investments. The weighted average maturities of the
are as follows:

June 30, 2015
Weighted

U.S. Treasury obligations ) 3.93
U.S. government agency obligations 3.45 2.56
Cotporate bonds 411 5.13

The College categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by U.S. GAAP. The
hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

(Continued)
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NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

Binsured money matket deposits, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. government agency
v market mutual funds of $28,026,747 are valued using quoted matket prices (Level 1

cign bonds of $4,451,055 are valued using a mattix pricing model (Level 2 inputs) while the
d income mu nd and the mulu-strategy bond mutual fund totalmg $10,776,097 are valued

The Foundation has the f %%5 §
%;;a

5

S Lo
Demand deposits, U 'S. Treas yobligations, equity mutual funds, and money matket mutual funds of §7,151,439
are valued using quoted market pfi

The intermediate fixed incomeé{gnutual fund of $2,90; is valued at the NAV per shate (ot its equivalent) of

the investments (Level 2 inputs)

Private real estate funds and equity mutk 153 are valued at the NAV per share (ot its equivalent)

of the investments (Level 3 inputs).

The valuation method for investments measured at AV per share ivalent) is presented in the following
table.

Investments Measured at NAV
(§ in millions)

Fair Unfunded i Notice

Value Commitments Period
Intermediate fixed income mutual funds @ - § 84 - 30 days
‘Multi-strategy bond mutual funds @ 5.3 - 7 days
Equity mutual fund @) 0.5 - Quarterly 60 days
Private real estate fund @ _ 0.3 - N/A N/A
Total investments measured at NAV $ 145
(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE B - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued

O Intermediate fhoced Income Mutual Funds. The investment objective of the Multi-Strategy Bond Fund is to offer an
6d, multi-manager investment program that will provide broad exposute to global debt markets.
i d value above the return of the broad [ bond market as measured by the Ba:cclays Capital

vﬂ:

‘gé% ?%Asggregate Bohd

ghixed Income U ;ff bse. The fund’s msk characteristics will vary from those of the index due to its d1vers1ﬁed
exposures to segf outs1de of the mdex mcludmg below investment grade debt and mternatlonal bond and

k of America Mettill Lynch 1-3 Year Treasury Index, but attaches
higher current yield than short-term money market investments in 2
OF4 negative total return over any 12-month petiod. The fair values of the

@  Equity Mutnal Fund. The TitangInternational Fund i
fund has an absolute return objective and targ
(e.g., Equity and Fixed Income). The
NAV per share (ot its equivalent) of

@  Private Real Estate Fund. Equus Capital Partners’ d X seeks to acquite value add propernes across all major
real estate segments throughout the U.S. It is a ]
with regional owner-operators through joint ven _
to be fully diversified actoss all major property types and acrosg '
integrated platform, from deal soutcing, through acquisiti
renovation, repositioning and exit. The fund includes m A
tecourse to the fund level. The fair values of the investments in this type have been d ined using the NAV
pet share (ot its equivalent) of the investments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts rec %?i@i? include the following at ]une 30:

P

&

2016 .2015
Component Component
unit unit
College Foundation College Foundation
7,384,351 $ - $ 7,694,272 $ -
Grants receivable 74,818 52,710 71,783 660,060
Other receivables 434,641 631,977 1,287,937 122,988
Pledges receivable ¥ - 640,473 - 1,164,430
Receivable from Foundation 429,804 - 316,686 -
9,323,614 1,325,160 9,370,678 - 1,947,478
Less allowance for doubtful o
accounts (51,667) (4,540,675) (92,096)
Total $ 4,931,45 1,273,493 $ 4,830,003“ $ 1,855382
The College anticipates that all of its net accounts redggable will be c¢ Within one year.
Accounts receivable, tuition and fees and other are reported at le value¥Accounts are written off when

they ate determined to be uncollectible based upon managem
for doubtful accounts is estimated based on the College’s historical losses and
The allowance was $4,392,161 and $4,540,675 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, r&
the Foundation’s pledges receivable are expected to be collected subsequent to June 30, 2016, ally on a five-year
payment schedule.
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NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS

34

Capital assets copsist of the following at June 30, 2016:

Balance Retirements Balance
July 1, and June 30,
2015 Additions adjustments 2016
eciated '
$ 29,206,260 $ 1,365,834 $ - $ 30,572,094

193,754 2,501,050 (2,193,270) - 501,534

705,208 82,500 - 787,708

0,105,222 3,949,384 (2,193,270) 31,861,336

Buildings and improvements 233,051,875 549,541 - 233,601,416
Equipment and furniture 35,988,926 1,576,731 (105,964) 37,459,693
Library books 143,670 - 5,277,591
Microforms - - 1,671,710
Software - - 4,039,594
System'softwate 91,266, (751,417) 7,454,942

Total before depreciation 288,001, (857,381) 289,504,946

$ 318,106,341 (3,050,651) § 321,366,282

Accumulated depreciation by asset categoties is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, ne 30,
2015 Depreciation Reti 2016
Buildings and improvements $ 101,085,869 § 5859156 § $ 106,945,025
Equipment and furniture 28,547,457 2,758,106 (98,533) 31,207,030
Libraty books 4,314,394 147,462 - 4,461,856
Microforms 1,668,715 2,455 - 1,671,170
Software _ 3,438,604 - - 3,438,604
System software 7,757,851 93,562 (751,417) 7,099,996
Total $ 146,812,800 § 8,860,741 $ (849,950) 154,823,681
Net capital assets ' $ 166,542,601
(Continued)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE D - CAPITAL ASSETS - Continued

ist of the following at June 30, 2015:

SN

Balance Retirements Balance
July 1, and June 30,
2014 Additions adjustments 2015
$ 29,054,933 $ 151,327 $ N $ 29,206,260
Construction in progress 351,752 663,880 (821,878) 193,754
Works of art r 705,208 - - 705,208
kg}i% 0,111,893 815,207 (821,878) 30,105,222

Capital assets being depreciated:

* Buildings and improvements |, 232,527,699 524,176 - 233,051,875
Equipment and furniture 36,632,8 877,431 (1,521,343) 35,988,925
Library books 115,244 - 5,133,921
Microforms - - 1,671,710
Software - - 4,039,594
System software - 8,115,093

Total before depreciation 288,005, (1,521,343) 288,001,118
$ 318,117,503 $ (2,343,2é1) $ 318,106,340

Accumulated depreciation by asset categoties is summarized as follows:

Balance _Balance
July 1, une 30,
2014 Deptreciation Re 2015

Buildings and improvements $ 95185374 $ 5900495 § $ 101,085,869
Equipment and furniture 26,821,243 3,235,678 (1,509,464) 28,547,457
Library books 4,165,027 149,367 - 4,314,394
Microforms 1,664,224 4,491 - 1,668,715
Software 3,429,162 9,442 - 3,438,604
System softwate 7,359,525 398,325 - 7,757,850
Total $ 138,624,555 § 9,697,798 $ (1,509,464) 146,812,889

Net capital assets
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

- Categoty:
Vendors and others
Accrued salaties
Accrued benefits
Compensated absences

Retirement incentive paymen

Payroll withholding taxes
- Accrued interest
Payable to College

Total

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 3

2016

Long-term liabilities:
Acctued liabilities

Payable to government agencies

Capital lease obligation

Long-term debt

Unamortized bond premium

Other post-employment
benefits

and accrued liabilities consisted of the following at June 30:

2016 2015
Component Component
unit unit
College Foundation College Foundation
6,768,024  $ 58,754 $ 7,871,185 § 81,482
,478,599 - - 2,959,758 -
2,251,943 - 2,201,264 -
3,021,805 - 2,928,054 -
339,756 - 1,120,033 -
479,79 e - 255,960 -
- 265,743 -
429,805 . - 316,687
§ 165721 . 488,559, $ 17,601,997 § 398,169
2016 was as fog
Total
Beginning ding Cutrent
balance Additions Deductions A portion
$ 17,601,997 $ 76,539 § (1,106,373) $ $ 15,412,294
490,637 - (429,478) 61,159 61,159
2,708,983 - (1,684,13 1,024,846 358,836
71,192,638 2,660,627 - 73,853,265 6,910,051
417,894 6,826,143 - 7,244,037 573,109
58,227,563 12,200,754 - 70,428,317 -

$ 150,639,712 §$ 21,764,063 § (3,219,988)

$ 169,183,787

$ 23315449

(Continued)
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NOTE E - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES - Continued

Long-term liabilifysactivity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:
Total
Beginning ending Cutrent
balance Additions Deductions balance portion

Accrued liabilities $ (370354) $ 17,601,997 $ 16,517,824

Payable to government age (2,534,840) 490,637 490,637
Capital lease obligation y (5,270,053) 2,708,983 1,128,414
Long-term debt s (6,288,485) 71,192,638 6,170,886
Unamortized bond premium 469 062 - (51,168) 417,894 51,170
Other post-employment ‘

~ benefits ¥ 47,396,561 - 58,227,563 -

$ (14,514,900) § 150,639,712 § 24,358,931

g NOTEF - DEBT

The College’s debt financing is primarily provided- thirough Commudity’ C6 Revenue Bonds issued by the
Hospitals and Higher Education Facilities Authority and the State T " Biilding Authority.

Debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2016:

Balance Principal Current

July 1, 2015 Additions payments

2006 Seties $ 540,000 $ - $  (355,000) 185,000
2007 Series : 16,295,000 - (2,160,000) 2,270,000
2008 Series 51,465,000 - (45,425,000) '6,040,000 2,930,000
2015 Seties - 52,075,000 (655,000) 51,420,000 845,000
SPSBA Loan 226,596 -, (211,690) 14,906 14,903
SPSBA Loan 826,788 - (316,463) 510,325 367,963
SPSBA Loan 1,839,254 - (291,220) 1,548,034 297,185

$ 71,192,638 $ 52,075,000 $ (49,414,373) §$ 73,853,265 § 6,910,051

(Continued)
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NOTE F - DEBT - Continued
Debt consiste%@{;@ff%%gge following at June 30, 2015:

A :
‘1%%5 % , Balance Principal Balance Cuttrent
v . July 1,2014  Additions payments  June 30, 2015 portion

$ 880,000 $ ~§  (340,0000 $ 540,000 § 355000
350,000 - (2,055,000) 16,295,000 2,160,000

2008 Seties

- (2,675,000) 51,465,000 2,795,000
SPSBA Loan - (245,332) : - -
SPSBA Loan - (280,427) 226,596 208,993
SPSBA Loan - (407,349) 826,788 360,673
SPSBA Loan - (285,377) 1,839,254 291,220

$ (6,288,485 § 71,192,638 § 6,170,886

6 are as follows:

i Inteest Total

June 30:

2017 $ 6,910,051 $ 10,554,896
2018 6,810,633 4 10,066,509
2019 6,229,480% 0,927 9,120,407
2020 . 6,515,817 2,606,090

2021 6,802,284 2,307,823

2022 \ : 6,800,000 1,997,050

2023 7,125,000 1,672,810 :

2024 . 5,325,000 1,333,000 76,658,000
2025 5,590,000 1,066,750 6,656,750
2026 4,995,000 787,250 5,782,250
2027 5,245,000 537,500 5,782,500
2028 5,505,000 275,250 5,780,250

$ 73,853,265 $ 22375171 $ 96,228,436

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

1. 2006 Seties
P

dated September 15, 2006 with the State Public School Building Authority (the Authority),
,000,000 of 2006 Seties Community College Revenue Bonds. Of the total obligation,
eferred maintenance including roof repaits (Bonnell, West, Gymnasium, Winnet Building
Regional Centet); extetior brick repaits (Winnet Building and Gymnasium); and 16th Street
#"The College also received $50,000 from the Authority that was applied to issuance cost. The
d to be tepaid gfie.a 10-year petiod through June 20, 2017 at the interest rate of 4.5%, with an

average annual debt service pa 49,372. A '

Remaining principal pay. loan agreement are as follows:
| Principal
$_185,000
2. 2007 Series
Under 2 loan agreement dated February State Public School Building Authority, the College

(including bond premium net of bond discount and is
securities, which ‘were deposited in an irrevocable ¢
payments on the 1998 Seties Bonds and 2001 Seties of the 1998 Series Bonds and
2001 Series Bonds was considered to be defeased. The 1998 and 20018 wete called as of November 1,
2011, and the related escrow with the trustee of the defeased hghds is zerogiLhe 2007 Seties Bonds are payable over
16Y/2 yeats at tates from 4.00% to 5.00%, with an average annudl debt service’payment of $2,602,675.

Principal payments requited by the loan agreement ate as follows:

Principal

2017 : § 2,270,008
2018 2,385,000
2019 1,750,000
2020 1,820,000
2021 1,885,000
2022-2025 4,025,000

$ 14,135,000

(Continued)
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NOTE F - DEBT - Contittued

2008 Seties Community College Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued for the benefit
/2 project consisting of: (a) the construction, equipping and ﬁ1rn1sh1ng of an approximately
ng for instructional facilities and student meeting spaces on the main campus of the College,
ects related theteto; (b) the renovation and expansion of administrative buildings for the
main campus of the College; (c) the expansion of the campus facilities
ster of the College in Northeast Philadelphia; and (d) the payment of costs
‘ bonds The College also received $50,000 from the State Public School
ance cost. The bonds are scheduled to be repaid over a 20-year period
3.00% to 6.25%, with an average annual debt service payment of

compnsmg
and expenses incident to the i
Building Authority that wags
through June 15, 2028

- $6,064,257. The 2008 Seties Bon

Undet a Loan Agreement dated
College, the College borrowed $

ember 10, 2015, between the State Public School Building Authority and the
5,000 of 2015 Series Community College Revenue Bonds to advance refund a

Projects consist of the following: (1) Renovatmg the
in the College’s West Building; and (3) Various other
regoing components of the 2015 Capital Projects will be
unity college buildings in furtherance of its educational

College’s biology labs; (2) Replacing certajise
renovations, repairs and capital improvements. All'S
used in connection with the College’s operation of it:
mission. The 2015 Seties Bonds are payable over 1
payment of $4,166,000. The unrefunded seties of 20084
of $2,415,000. '

Remaining principal payments for the 2015 Series Bonds and '. d Series of 2008 Bonds required by the
loan agteement ate as follows: ‘ {

Principal
2017 $ 3,775,000
2018 3,980,000
2019 4,170,000
2020 4,380,000
2021 4,595,000
2022 ‘ 4,830,000
2023 5,070,000
2024 5,325,000
2024-2028 ’ 21,335,000

$ 57,460,000

(Continued)
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NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

4. Revolvin bligation

A }gf“wi% ,

Under a ggf‘ een%e 19 dated July 15, 2011 with the State Public School Building Authority, the College botrowed

0,0¢ ¥pbse of compleung the build out of 7,291 square feet of space to be leased adjacent to the

enter. The loan is scheduled to be repaid over a five-year petiod through July 15, 2016 at 2
of 3.00%, with an average annual debt setvice payment of $216,899.

Remaining“pifteipal payments requified by the loan agreement are as follows:

Principal
% $ 14906
5. Revolving Loan Obligation
Under a loan agreement dated January 31, 2013 - ‘ : \ ate; -Public School Building Authority, the College

renewal and update of four chemistry labs, an
Buildmg on the College’s Main Campus. The loan is

botrowed $1,800,000 for the purpose of
instrumentation lab and the associated prepiiy
scheduled to be repaid over a ﬁve—year petio throt
with an average annual debt setvice payment of $377

Remaining principal payments required by the loan agg

2017 |
2018 C L 142362

5

510,325

6. Revolving Loan Obligation

Under a loan agreement dated Aptil 1, 2013 with the State Public School Building uthonty, the College borrowed
$2,400,000 for the purpose of renovations to several spaces in the West Building on the College’s Main Campus to
address critical programmatic needs. The loan is scheduled to be repaid over a ﬁve—year petiod through November 1,
2020 at a fixed annual interest rate of 2.027%, with an average annual debt setvice payment of $325,551.

(Continued)
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NOTE F - DEBT - Continued

Remaining pri al payments required by the loan agreement are as follows:
g P pay q y gt :

PrinciEal

$ 297,184
303,269
309,480
315,817
320 284

$ 1,548,034

-

7. Operating Leases

erating lease atrangements that expire through 2021.
,683 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,

The College leases certain equipment and proper
Rental expense for operating leases was $7
respectively.

Future minimum lease payments required under oper:

2017

2018

2019 ‘

2020 412,062
2021 171,543

$§ 1,927,835

8. Capital Leases

The College leases cettain equipment under capital lease arrangements that expire through 2021. These leases are
recorded at the lower of cost ot present value and amounted to $1,024,846 and $2,708,983 at June 30, 2016 and
2015, tespectively. Amortization charges of capital leases were $1,919,844 and $2,232,948 for the years ended June
30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(Continued)
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June 30, 2016 and 2015
NOTE F - DEBT - Continued
Future minimugalease payments under capital leases ate as follows:
i '
Principal - Interest Total

$ 358,836 $ 29,067 $ 387,903

272,897 19,651 292,548

' 10,738 253,176

2020 3,168 131,085

2021 N 453 23,211

‘ $ 63,077 $§ 1,087,923 .

NOTE G - (PAYABLE TO) RECEIYABLE FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

2015

(Payabl €)

(Payable) ~ Receivable

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:
Provision for potential audit
findings and reimbursement

calculation $ (17,226) $ - $ -
" Grants and special projects - 968,015 335,095
PHEAA for grants (29,190) - -
' (46,416) 968,015 335,095
City of Philadelphia grants
receivable - 15,602 183,214
Federal:
Financial aid progtams (1,906) 10,243 - 167,839
Grants and special projects (12,837) 414,202 - 2,161,908
(14,743) 440,047 - 2,512,961
Total , $ (61,159) § 1,408,062 $ (490,637) § 2,848,056

45



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

are provided for substantially all employees through payments to one of the board-authorized
though the College does not offer participation in the State Employees Retirement System
tania Public School Employees Retitement System (PSERS), it has grandfathered continued

burg, PA 17108-0125; and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, State

Employees’ Retirement 'stem, 3 d Street, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1147.

Benefits Provided

PSERS and SERS provide retitement, disabili
as 2% ot 2.5% (depending on membershi
years of credited setvice. After completio :
and eatly retitement may be elected. Individualsare

years of ctedited setvice. Such disability benefits are
of the membet’s final average salary multiplied by

fits. For PSERS, retirement benefits are determined
dual’s final average salary multiplied by the number of
ervice, an individual’s right to defined benefits is vested,
for disability retirement benefits after completion of five
5% (depending on membership class)

Such benefits are actuatially equivalent to the benefit that wo Bueffective if the member had retired on
the day before death.

the highest three-
(depending on

For SERS, retirement benefits are determined at 2% ot 2.5% (depending on membership da
year average salary times the numbet of years of service. The vesting petiod is eithet 5 or 10
membetship date) of credited service. '

Contributions

Fot PSERS, the contribution policy is set by state statutes and requires contributions by active members, employets
and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. Funding petcentages are determined by the plan in accordance with
actuatial calculations and are based on coveted payroll. Cutrently, for full time faculty, administratots and other staff,
the College contributes 10.7% of all eatnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay
retitement benefits when due. Employee conttibutions are 6.5% of all earnings for members priot to July 22, 1983
and 7.5% of all earnings fof members after July 22, 1983.

(Continued)
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For SERS, the gfintribution policy is set by state statutes and requires contributions by active members, employets
: th of Pennsylvania. Funding percentages are determined by the plan in accordance with

119.92% of all earnings as long as contributions are adequate to accumulate assets to pay
due. Employee contributions are 6.25% of all earnings.

At June 30, 2016, the College
pension liability for PSERS a4 §
PSERS and December 3142 SERS, 3hd the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
was determined by an aghy . f'that date. The College’s propottion of the net pension liability is based
on a projection of the College’s ih share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating §iistitutions, actuatially determined. At June 30, 2015 and December 31, 2015,
respectively, the College’s propotfiph of PSERS and SERS was 0.0032% and 0.0110%.

opottional pension expense for PSERS and SERS of

$203,000 and $297,780, respectively, as s’ actuatial schedules. At June 30, 2016, the College

trepotted deferred outflows of resoutces anid defer yws of tesoutces related to pensions from the following
soutces:
PSERS " Defetred
Inflows of
Resources

Diffetence between expected and actual experience 6,000

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments - 3,000
Changes in propottion and differences beween College

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

Total , % 9,000

(Continued)
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Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resoutces Resources

ected and actual experience ‘ $ 40461 $ -
' 59,367 -

nd actual earnings )
203,455 -
274,243 174,872

$ 577, 526 $ 174,872

sion habihty used to calculate the net pension liability
ollege’s proporuon of the net pension liability is based
ributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
etermined. At Junie 30, 2014 and December 31, 2014,

on a projection of the College’s long-term share
contributions of all participating institutions, actua

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the College recogtﬁzed the prop expense for PSERS and SERS
of $90,000 and $283,500, respectively, as provided by the plan: chedules. At June 30, 2015, the College
reported defetred outflows of resources and deferred inflowsfgt” & islated to pensions from the following
soutces: )

PSERS : ‘ Deferred ‘ erred

Outflows of s, of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments $ $ 74,000
Changes in proportion and differences beween College '
conttibutions and proportionate share of contributions 132,000 -
Total $ 132,000 $ 74,000
(Continued)

48



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

June 30, 2016 and 2015
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SERS &f%
ol A
_ N

Actuarial Assumptions

The following methods and ass

PSERS
Actuarial cost method
Investment rate of teturn

Salary increases

Mortality rates

SERS
Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Investment rate of teturn

tions wete used i
These methods and assumptions were applied tog

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resoutces Resources

$ 9,688 $ -
1,565 -
350,422 23,351

$ 361,675 $ 23,351

ial valuations for the year ended June 30, 2016.
cluded in the measutement:

based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Annuit it fL'ables (male and
female) with age set back three years for both males a )

entry age-
straight-line amortization of investments over five years and amortization of
assumption changes and noninvestment gains/losses over the average

expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided benefits

7.50% net of expenses including inflation

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued | -

increases average of 5.70% with range of 3.85% - 9.05% including inflation
2.75%

projected RP-2000 Mottality Tables adjusted for actual plan experience and
future improvement

e used in the actuatial valuations for the year ended June 30, 2015.

These methods and ass to all petiods included in the measurement:

PSERS

Actuatial cost method entry age normal-level % of pay ;

Investment rate of return 7.50%, incly bn at 3.00%

Salaty increases effe 5%, which reflects an allowance for inflation of 3.0%
real wage gr 1.0%, and metit of seniotity increases of 1.5%

Morttality rates based on the i ealthy Annuitant Tables (male and
female) with a males and females. For disabled
annuitants the RP-2000 C Tables (male and female) with
age set back seven years A d threeyears for females.-

SERS

Actuarial cost method entry age

Amortization method straight-line amortization of investments over five anortization of
assumption changes and noninvestment gaig§/losses over the average
expected remaining service lives of all empl  that are provided benefits

Investment rate of return 7.50% net of expenses including inflation

Projected salaty increases " average of 6.10% with range of 4.30% - 11.05% including inflation

Inflation 2.75%

Mortality rate " projected RP-2000 Mortality Tables ad]usted for actual plan expetience and
future improvement

Cost of living adjustments ad hoc

(Continued)
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NOTE H - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - Continued

ges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These
roduce the long-term expected rate of return by welghtmg the expected future rates of

Long-term
Target expected rate
Asset clasg*fz allocation of return
o

Public Markets Gl | N - 22.50% 4.80%
Private Markets Eqlifty 15.00% 6.60%
Private Real Estate 12.00% 4.50%
Global Fixed Income’ 7.50% 2.40%
U.S. Long Term Treasuries 3.00% 1.40%
TIPS 12.00% 1.10%
High Yield bonds’ 6.00% 3.30%
Cash 0.70%
Absolute Return 4.90%
‘Risk Parity 3.70%
MLPs/Infrastructute 5.20%
Commodities 3.10%

10%

Financing (LIBOR)

Total 100.00%

(Continued)
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SERS N

i .
Some of 4] ,é%‘ffhethg* stand assumptions mentioned above are based on the 774 Investigation of Actuarial Experience,
748 published inifanuary 2011 and analyzed experience from 2006 through 2010. The long-term expected real

"’investments is determined using a building-block method in which best estimates of ranges
§

éd rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation
“adding expectedidnflation. The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return are

e Long-Term

2y Target Expected Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return
Alternative Investments 15.00% 8.50%
Global Public Equity 40.00% 5.40%
Real Assets . 17.00% 4.95%
Diversifying Assets 10.00% 5.00%
Fixed Income 1.50%
Non-rated/Other 0.00%

Total
For PSERS and SERS, the discount rate used to measute tot ension liaBtlity was 7.5%. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually req
determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was proj
make all projected future benefit payments of cutrent plan members. Therefore, the 1
return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to d
liability. '

5 made at the current
d rates, actuarially
» be available to

‘ ektiected rate of
tmine the total pension

Sensitivity of the Net Position Liability

For PSERS, the College’s net pension liability is $1,386,000 using a 7.5% discount rate. The College’s net pension
liability would have been $1,708,489 assuming a 1% point decrease (6.5%) in the discount rate and would have been
$1,115,113 assuming a 1% point increase (8.5%) in the discount rate. :

For SERS, the College’s net pension liability is $1,998,201 using a 7.5% discount rate. The College’s net pension
liability would have been $2,482,142 assuming a 1% point decrease (6.5%) in the discount rate and would have been
$1,583,248 assuming a 1% point increase (8.5%) in the discount rate.

(Continued)
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ent eatnings. Full-time faculty and adrmmstrauVe employees are eligible to participate from
f, and clerical employees have a one-year waiting petiod. Participation is mandatory for
inistrative employees upon reaching the age of 30 or after two years of employment,
ate. Participation is mandatoty for full-time classified and confidential employees upon

reaching th or after four yéhs of employment whichever is the later date. Patt-time faculty may participate
after earning four seniority uni fined in the collective bargaining agreement. College policy and collective
batgaining agreements requir &employee and the College contribute amounts, as set forth below, based
on the employee’s earnin. :

%.% ?[

The College’s contributions for
Death benefits in the amount of
who dies prior to retirement. V3
in this progtam.

yee (and interest allocated to the employee’s accounts) are fully vested.
present value of accumulation are provided to the beneficiaty of a participant
payment options ate available. The College has 1,227 employees participating

$65,256,751 and $65,534,082; and the College’s total
2015, respectively. Conttibutions made by the College
,691,129, respectively, tepresenting 8.94% and 8.68%,
buted $4,906,108 and $4,794,327, respectively, duting fiscal

The payroll for employees covered by th
payroll is $78,702,353 and $77,987,146 af’
duting fiscal 2016 and 2015 totaled $5,832, 078 a
respectively, of covered payroll. College employees c
2016 and 2015. A summaty of retirement benefits follg

Type of employee

Full-time faculty %of base contract
Visiting lecturers 5% of base contra§
Part-time faculty . 5% of all earnings
Administrators and othet staff 10% of base contrac;
Othets 10% of annual sal
Employee contribution 5% of base sal:

3. Other Post-employment Benefits Liability

The College’s Retirement Benefits Plan is a single-employer plan, which offers board-authotized post-employment
benefits, other than pension, to eligible retitees. The plan provides post-reurement medical, prescription drug, dental
and life insurance benefits. The plan is unfunded, and no financial report is prepared. These benefits ate accounted
for in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-employment
Bengfits Other Than Pensions.

(Continued)
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Funding

The con ements of plan members and the College ate established and may be amended by the
Colleg ees. The plan is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis (i.e., premiums are paid to fund the health
cat; & current retirees). The College paid premiums of $2,765,425 and $2,542,581 for the fiscal

dtug program and was if
Medicare-eligible retirees. &
equivalent to Medicare J«!“ 3 £
annual drug costs that fall within a |

30, 2016 and $205,647 for the ye

urage employers to retain the prescription benefits offered to
‘ Joyers that retain prescription drug coverage for retirees that is at least

i ge The College received payments of $237,252 for the year ended June
ded June 30, 2015.

d of the contract yeat in which the employee tutns

The College also provides life instirance for retirees un '
: dministrators/Confidential and academic year for

65 yeats of age. Contract year is ‘defined as it
Faculty/Classified. The College paid pre
2016 and $16,642 covering 41 retirees for

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The College’s annual other post-employment bene { (OPEB) co
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarigly
of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of fu
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actu
exceed 30 yeats. The following shows the components of the College’s annual OPEB cost*
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the College’s net OPEB obligation:

2016
Annual required contribution $ 16,338,357 $ 13,249,915
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 16,338,357 13,289,050 13,249,915
Contributions made (4,707,120) (5,272,731) (4,608,714)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 11,631,237 8,0i 6,319 8,641,201
Net OPEB obligation at July 1 55,412,880 47,396,561 38,755,360
Net OPEB obligation at June 30 $ 67,044,117 $ 55,412,880 $ 47,396,561

(Continued)
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The College’s: .

F

obhgatlon %fo o

Percentage of

- annual OPEB
Annual OPEB cost Net OPEB
principal contributed total
Year ended:
June 30, 20{9 ; $ 16,338,357 28.81% $ 67,044,117
June 30, 20% 13,289,050 - 39.67% 55,412,880
June 30, 2014 13,249,915 34.78% 47,396,561

Founded Status and Funding Progress §

e value of reported amounts and assumptions about
kamples include assumptions about future employment, -
determined regardi’ng the funded status of the plan and
to continual revision as actual results are compared with

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involy
the probability of occurrence of events f:
_mortality and the health care cost trend.

past expectations and new estimates are made about
valuation date is as follows:

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial value of assets
Actuarial accrued liability

Unfunded actuatial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio

Annual covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

54,031,275
319.84%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about the plan’s funding.

(Continued)
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de techniques that are designed to reduce the efforts of short-term volatility in actuarial
e actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-tettn perspective of the calculations. The

Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit

Amottization method & Closed, level dollar amortization over 30 years
Remaining amorti 22 yeats

Discount rate 4.00%

Medical/prescription drug tre 7.00%, gtadually decreasing to 4.50% in 2036

Dental trend rate 1.00%

Mortality table e RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Mortality Table

6 and projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2015 plus
n the RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Mortality Table

4, Retitement lnpggﬁve Program o

A retitement incentive option was offered to employees 62 yeats ot wve completed at least 15 years of
full-time service, and whose combined age and years of service Phis option expired August 31,
2014. During 2015, thete wete two people who accepted the ez d incentive options; the present value
of future payments as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 of $85,460 4#d $157,31 fespectively, has been accrued. Future
payments in the next two fiscal yeats ate each expected to be $85,460.

Effective September 1, 2014, the collective batgaining agteement provides for a retirement j for full-time
employees at age 63, 64 or 65 with at least 20 years of service. The incentive payment is

based on years of service.

In February 2015, the College offered a one-time retirement incentive progtam to loyees 65 yeats or older and
who had at least 15 years of full-time setvice. The incentive payment is 25% of an employee’s final salary and an
additional incentive which ranged from $5,000 (if retirement commitment was received by February 28, 2015) to
$2,000 (for all commitments received by May 31, 2015). All retirements for non-faculty employees had to be effective
by August 31, 2015, while faculty membets had an additional option of December 31, 2015. The total of all incentive
payments for the program was $712,729.
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‘'NOTEI- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Based upon thegirovisions of Act 46 enacted in 2005 and effective with the June 2007 fiscal year, the Commonwealth
no longer a funding received. In lieu of the state audit, an enrollment verification and capital expenditure
audit is ¥ithe College’s independent auditor. The College has accrued for audit findings through 2006,
the la Wealth audits wete petformed.

They s received is sub]ect to compliance audits by the disbursing governmental agency. The College
believesgis in iance with all significant grant requirements.

ch that, from time to time, the College is exposed to vatious risks of loss
scrimination, breach of contract; labor disputes; disagreements atising
‘ theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;
While some of these claims may be for substantial amounts, they are not
ding g educational setvices. The College addresses these risks by purchasing
retention of risk is limited to the deductibles on its insurance policies, which
depending on the nature of the claim.

The natute of the educational i
telated to torts; alleged neg
from the interpretation of o
injuties to employees; aeﬁii

commercial insurance. The Colle
tange from $-0- to $150,000 per

e from the prior year. There have been no instances
for each of the last three years. It is not expected that

where a settlement amount exceeded the i
have a material advetse effect on the accompanying

the resolution of any outstanding claims
financial statements.

NOTE J - OPERATING EXPENSES

The College’s and component unit Foundation’s operating expensgss ification basis, were comprised
of the following: ’

2016 015
Component Component
umt unit

College Foundation Foundation
Salaries $ 77,930,971 $ 771,382 $ « $ 826,335
Benefits 36,978,141 280,654 35,766,816 281,319
Contracted services 6,457,843 83,286 8,330,474 214,789
Supplies 3,857,149 59,440 3,072,876 93,657

Depreciation 8,860,741 - 9,697,798 -
Student aid A 8,739,358 495,904 8,210,976 308,944

Other post-retirement benefits 13,166,573 - 8,389,818 -
Other 11,686,120 - 507,665 12,815,100 364,680
, Total $ 167,676,896 $ 2,198,331 $ 163,444,669 $ 2,089,724
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NOTE K - CITY AND STATE APPROPRIATIONS

Appropriation%%gn the Commonwealth and the City for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, are as follows:
; g%;’:,, 2 .

2016 2015

y Operations Capital Opetrations Capital
‘éf%?p

Cofd “Pennsylvania $ 30128328 § 5316618 § 2863158 § 5023385
City o phia g 23,271,627 7,037,580 21,271,006 5,836,028

53,399,955 $ 12,354,198 $ 49,902,595 $ 10,859,413

z‘i%ﬁ*
NOTE L - PASS-THRO éH GR/
The College distributed $38,206,2 2016 and $41, 888 351 in 2015 for student loans through the U.S. Department
At tions and related fundmg soutces are not included as
eipts in the accompanying financial statements.

'The College has evaluated subsequent events throu,
disclosure in the financial statements, except as follo

2016, but no agreement has yet been reached.
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 2016 and 2015
Actuarial UAAL (OAAL)
Actuarial accrued petcentage
value of liability Unfunded Covered of covered
assets (AAL) AAL Funded ratio paytoll payroll
(b) (b-2) (a/b) © (@b)/c)
$ 72,351,352 $ 72351392 § - $ 64,747,493 111.74%
81,337,622 81,337,622 - 73,489,322 110.68
103,846,976 . 103,846,976 - 76,796,463 135.22
24,575,199 124,575,199 - 76,015,530 163.88
42,548,517 142,548,317 - 76,380,018 186.63
908 172,815,908 - 78,702,353 219.58
ollege
Percentage
Fiscal year conttibution #Contribution contributed
June 30, 2008 $ 7,257,715 "§ 2,063,042 Yo
June 30, 2009 7,463,367
June 30, 2010 8,590,625
June 30, 2011 8,872,232 2,833,597
June 30, 2012 10,982,860 3,371,858
June 30, 2013 12,255,644 3,725,611
June 30, 2014 13,249,915 4,608,714
June 30, 2015 13,289,050 5,272,732
June 30, 2016 16,338,357

4,707,120

The information presented above was determined as patt of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated.

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Asset valuation method N/A
Remmaining amortization petiod 22 years
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 4.00%

Medical cost trend rate
Ptesctiption drug cost trend rate
Dental cost trend rate

Mottality table

7.00% gradually decteasing to 4.50% in 2036
7.00% gradually decteasing to 4.50% in 2036
1.00%

88% of rates in the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy
Mortality Table backed off to' 2006 and projected to
2020 with Scale MP-2015 plus 12% of rates in the
RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Mortality Table
backed off to 2006 and projected to 2020 with Scale
MP-2015.

See accofnpanying teport of independent cettified public accountants.
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SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Years ended June 30,

2016 2015
PSERS ;
o %gﬁs?‘r '§§ S
A‘M o
College’s pg@%bmon ofithe net pension
liabilitys@sset) 0.0032% 0.0026%

4 o (35@
College%

pension liaBilE $ 1,386,000  $ 1,030,000

College’s covered employee pay $ 413,104 $ 335,800

48
Plan fiduciaty net posmoﬁ*ﬁgs a

petcentage of the total pension liab 54.36% 57.24%

SERS

College’s proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) \ 0.0110% 0.0120%
College’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) ,998,201 $ 1,784,684

College’s covered employee payroll ' o ' | $ 653,78 $ 692,779

Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 64.80%

See accompanying teport of independent certified public accountants.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Years ended June 30,

2016

2015
$ 83,000 $ 52,000
83,000 52,000
Conttibution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered employee payroll $ 413104 $ 335,800
Conttibutions as a % of covered emplgyee payroll 20.0918% 15.4854%
SERS
Contractually required contribution $ 202,576 $ 98,248
Contribution in relation to the contractually
required contribution 202,576 98,248
Contribution deficiency (excess) - $ -

Covered employee payroll $  653,75¢

Conttibutions as a % of covered employee payroll

See accompanying report of independent cettified public accountants.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES QF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended June 30, 2016

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditutes
U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 $ 770,585
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 930,500
Federal Pell Grant P, 84.063 47,328,738
Federal Direct Stud 84.268 38,206,211
87,236,034
TRIO,
TRIQ. 84.042A 254,280
TRIO 84.047A 267,649
521,929
Strengthening Minority-Serving Institutions ment) 84.382 599,598
Higher Education Institutional Aid (Predomi ormula Grant) 84.031 513,861
Passed-through University of Pennsylva
Career and Technical Education - %ﬁ"e; 84.048 381-16-000 1,307,292
‘ Undergraduate International Studies L 84.016 PO16A140008 93,564
Passed-through University of Pennsylvania
National Resource Centers 84.015A 3,750
Passed-through the School District of Philadelphia
Advanced College Experience : . 84.334 SC# 568335 14,250
Minority Science and Engineering Improvement (Raising Interest in STEM (RIS 84.120A 196,952
Total U.S. Department of Education 90,487,230
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed-through the Philadelphia Hospital and Health Care Distsict 1199C
National Wotkforce Divessity Pipeline Program CPIMP151091-01-00 947

U.S. Department of Labor
Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career
Training (TAACCCT) Grants
Passed-through the Commonwealth of PA, Dept. of Labor and Industey
Microcredentials
Job Corps

Total U.S. Department of Labor

U.S. Depattment of Transportation
Passed-through Highway Administration
Highway Research and Development Program (Eisenhower Community College Fellowship -
Research and Development)

National Science Foundation
Passed-through Drexel University

Education and Human Resources (Alliance for Minotity Partnership - Research and Development)

ATE Biomedical/Cultures Project (Research and Development)
Total National Science Foundation

National Endowment for the Humanities
Passed-through Arts Midwest
The Big Read
Bridging Cultures Project

Total National Endowment for the Humanities

(Continued)
See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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20.200

47.076
NSF 11-692

45.024
45.162

502,694

17,258
13,933

533,885

30,000

HRD-1408052 20,185
DUE-1400433 123,397

143,582

FY16-2157 11,600
ME-50046-14 50,773

62,373



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS = CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2016

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Justice
. Passed-through Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency
Edward Byrne Memorigl Justice Assistance Grant Program (Reentey Support Project) 16.738 2011-DJ-BX-0176 $ 28,983

$ 91,287,000

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2016

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the schedule) summarizes the expenditutes of the
Community Cgllege of Philadelphia (the College) under programs of the federal government for the year ended

{ &chedule of Expenditures of Federal awards presents only a selected portion of the operations
seintended to, and does not, present the financial position, changes in net position, and cash

similar agreements. Federal awg
statement of net position. g

The accompanying Schedule of
The information in the schedule
Uniform Administrative Requiremen
ptesented in the schedule may differ from amo
statements.

irements for Federal Awards. Thetefore, some amounts -
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial

NOTE C - FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAN

Federally guaranteed loans issued to students of the Ggllege during the
This amount has been included in the schedule. The College is r
administrative duties with respect to federally guaranteed stude

not included in its financial statements.

The College has terminated its participation in the Federal Petkins Loan Program. There |

no outstanding loans
remaining under this progtam.

NOTE D - ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

The College’s expenditutes include administrative expenses of $77,100 for Federal rants, $34,945 in Federal

Work Study, and $33,359 for Fedetal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Gran
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dependent Certlfled Public Accountants

o
We have au‘df’}sed in aceokf
America and the standaids apphcable to financial audits contained in Government Anditing Standards

General of the United States the financial statements of the business -type

College) as of and for t
which collectively comprise the Collg
-dated September 30, 2016.

Internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of
control over financial reporting (internals

the putpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiv
exptress an opinion on the effectiveness of the Colls

A deficiency in intetnal control exists when the design or operation of a co
management or employees, in the normal coutse of performing their assigned fu
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness i
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
misstatement of the College’s financial statements will not be prevented, or d and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combinati Pdeficiencies, in internal
control that is less sevetre than a matetial weakness, yet important enough*to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free
from matetial misstatement, we petformed tests of its compliance with cettain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Howevet, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
s that are required to be reported under Government Anditing Standards.
228 i;;z’“* 4 .

ﬁ,;m%énde PuY
#5957 The purpo% of this report is solely to describe the scope of our tesung of internal control and
%‘% comphanc “%ﬁhd the results of that testing, and not to prov1de an opinion on the effectiveness of the
%@ﬁ% ﬁ:rnal control or on comphance This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

5

i

Phﬂadelphla Pennsylv

September 30, 2016
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rm Guidance

oatd of Directors
Community Colleggi gt delphia

Repott on
We have audited the
types of compliance 1,
Compliance Supplement
year ended June 30, 20
auditor’s results section of the acc

p ance of the Community College of Philadelphia (the College) with the
ements desctibed in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget’s OMB
could have a dn:ect and.material effect on its ma]or federal programs for the

Management’s tesponsibility
Management is responsible for complianc
grants applicable to the College’s federal p

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to exptess an opinion on comp
based on our audit of the types of compliance requif
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted ‘in
Ametica; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Au
by the Compttoller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, CoJ‘t
Reguirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

e College’s major federal programs
d to above. We conducted our audit
United States of
0 Standards issued
U.S. Code of
and Andit

The above-mentioned standards and the Uniform Guidance require e plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance the types of compliance
requitements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s
compliance. -
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Opinion on each major federal program
In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
tequirtements trefetred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal
programs fot the yeat ended June 30, 2016.

Reportt on internal control over compliance
Management of the College is respons1ble for des1gmng, unplemennng, and maintaining effective

requirement of a fedegdl program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
comphance isa deﬁc1 7, Ot 2 combmauon of deﬁc1enc1es in internal control over compliance, such

énted, or detected and cotrected, on a timely basis.
t compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

requirement of a federal program
A significant deficiency in intepsi?
deficiencies, in internal control*6ver co
progtam that is less severe than a material
enough to metit attention by those charge

Our consideration of internal control over compliance
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to4
compliance that might be material weaknesses o
duting our audit we did not identify any deficiencies ]
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, matetial Weaknesses may Bxist that have not
been identified. ‘

Intended purpose :
The putpose of this Repott on Intetnal Control Over Compliance is solel escribe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing

of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this teport is not suitable for any®thet purpose.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

March ___, 2017

A
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended June 30, 2016

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Type of audlto ig;éé ‘,, i : Unmodified
Internal cgh
f;»‘

i
* ey —_— Yes X __no
e Significant

considered to be material wea N yes - _X  nonereported’

¢ Noncompliance materiglife al yes X __ no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major progra
e  Material weakness(es) identified? __ yes _X no

e Significant deficiency(s) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)? X none reported

Type of auditot’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

Identification of major progtams:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program
-84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportumty Grants

84.063 _ Federal Pell Grant Program

84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans

84.048 Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ' X yes no
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Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

Year ended June 30, 2016

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None.

71



Community College of Philadelphia
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Year ended June 30,2016 ¢

No matters to report.
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